
TOWN OF STRATHAM 
 INCORPORATED 1716 

 
10 BUNKER HILL AVENUE • STRATHAM NH 03885 

 
VOICE (603) 772-7391 • FAX (603) 775-0517 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO: Michael Houghton, Select Board Chair 
 Allison Knab, Select Board Vice Chair 
 Joe Anderson, Select Board 
 
FROM: David Moore, Town Administrator 
 
DATE: February 3, 2023 
 
RE: Select Board Agenda and Materials for the February 6th Regular Meeting 
 
 
Please allow this memorandum to serve as a guide to the Select Board Meeting agenda for 
Monday, February 6, 2023.  
 
III. Consideration of Minutes –January 17, 2023 and February 1, 2023 
 
IV. Treasurer Report (second meeting of the month) 
 
V. Department Reports & Presentations 
 A. none scheduled – public hearing on warrant  
 
VI. Correspondence 

A.  Letter from Eversource – transmission structure replacements 
B.  Letter from Unitil – tree / shrub plantings 
C.  Letter from NH DOT – Squamscott Rd culvert replacement  
D.  Drinking Water and Groundwater 2023 Strategic Planning Grant 
E.   ZBA Notice of Decision – 23 Portsmouth Ave. 
F.   Letter form Richard Goulet re: resignation from Zoning Board of Adjustment 

 
VII. Public Comment 
 
VIII. Public Hearings, Ordinances and/or Resolutions 
 

A. Public Hearing on 2023 Town Budget Warrant  



For materials associated with this public hearing, please see the public hearing warrant, 
preliminary budget materials, and capital improvement plan on the Town Meeting page.  
 
I have also included a draft of the Town Warrant in your packet in draft form. 
  

IX. Discussion of Monthly Reports – (second meeting of the Month) 
 
X. New Business and Action Items 

 
A. Expenditure of Funds from Accrued Benefits Liability Expendable Trust 
  
In 2022, the Town incurred costs associated with two Police Department retirements 
that includes payout of sick leave, vacation and associated NH retirement System 
contribution and payroll taxes totaling $39,271.50.  These funds are eligible expenses 
for the above named Trust.  We have confirmed our ability with the auditors to make a 
request of the Trustees of Trust Funds at this time to initiate this reimbursement to the 
General Fund even though we are in a new fiscal year.  The Board could request 
disbursement of all or a portion of these funds.  The current balance of the fund held by 
the Trustees is $103,000.  In recent years, we have funded similar expenses through 
payroll items in departments as they were less costly (an effort to preserve the Trust 
balance).    A discussion about this request, should include consideration of other 
upcoming exposures which the Finance Administrator and I will be pleased to 
characterize. 
 
B. Pump Track Renovation 

 
Please see the attached memorandum from Seth Hickey regarding this project. 
 
C. Finalization of Town Warrant and Budget 

a. Updates on line item budget 
b. Workshop on capital and ARPA funds 
c. Votes on Select Board Recommendations on Articles 
d. Town Meeting presentation preparations 

 
XI. Town Administrator Report 
 
I will present developments associated with open items and other business of the Town.  If any 
Board member has a specific request of an item I cover at the meeting, I welcome hearing from 
you at any time. 
 

A. Update on elected position filings 
B. Proposed Joint Letter Regarding Route 33 Corridor Study 
C. Goals discussion 
D. HB 647 – “Immunity Bill” – NHMA input 

https://www.strathamnh.gov/town-meeting
https://www.nhmunicipal.org/legislative-bulletin/2023-nhma-legislative-bulletin-04#30714


E. Latest NHMA Legislative Bulletin (February 3, 2023) 
F. March 20th Select Board Meeting 
G. Burial Payment Request – Burial Reimbursement Request 

 
XII. Informational Items 

A. The library will formally introduce Ms. Cronin to the community on Monday, 
February 13, with a small reception from 5:30-7PM.  All are welcome to attend.  

B. 2022 Final Ratio Study Report 
  
XIII. Reservations, Event Requests & Permits 

A. Request from Port City Amateur Radio Club to use the top of the hill at SHP 6/23 – 
25/2023 

B. Raffle Permit request from CMS Music Boosters 
C. Great Bay 5K request to use the Front Pavilion 10/28/23 and waive the fee 

 
XIV. Review of Recent or Upcoming Board & Commissions Agendas 
  
XV.  Boards and Commissions Nominations & Appointments 
 

A.  Appointments for consideration:  
  
B.  Appointments to be voted on:   
 1.  Frank MacMillan for appointment to the Zoning Board of Adjustment 
 2.  Jameson Paine for appointment to the Zoning Board of Adjustment 

 
XVI. Miscellaneous & Old Business 
 
XVII. Adjournment 
 

https://www.nhmunicipal.org/legislative-bulletin/2023-nhma-legislative-bulletin-06#30842


TOWN OF STRATHAM 
 INCORPORATED 1716 

 
10 BUNKER HILL AVENUE • STRATHAM NH 03885 

 
VOICE (603) 772-7391 • FAX (603) 775-0517 

 
 

The Select Board reserves the right to take up business in any order deemed appropriate by the Chair.  A motion to 
enter Non-Public Session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3 may occur at any time during the meeting.  Submission of 
items to be placed on the Agenda must be to the Town Administrator by 4 pm the Wednesday before the scheduled 
meeting. 

SELECT BOARD AGENDA 
February 6, 2023 
7:00 P.M. Public  

Hutton Room, Stratham Municipal Center 
10 Bunker Hill Avenue, Stratham, NH 03885 

 
This meeting of the Select Board will be held in the Hutton Room of the Stratham Municipal 
Center 
 
The public may access this meeting at the date and time above using this conference call 
information.  Please dial the conference number (877) 205-7349 and input 2254 when 
prompted for a user pin/code.  If at any time during the meeting you have difficulty hearing the 
proceedings, please e-mail dmoore@strathamnh.gov. 
 
To access materials related to this meeting, please see this link:  
https://www.strathamnh.gov/select-board 

 

I. Call to order 
 
II. Roll Call 
 
III. Consideration of Minutes - January 17, 2023 and February 1, 2023 
 
IV. Treasurer Report (second meeting of the month) 
  
V. Department Reports & Presentations 
 A.  None scheduled – Public Hearing on the Warrant 
 
VI. Correspondence 
 A.  Eversource – transmission structure replacements 
 B.  Unitil – tree / shrub plantings 
 C.  Letter from NH DOT – Squamscott Rd culvert replacement  
 D.  Drinking Water and Groundwater 2023 Strategic Planning Grant 
 E.  ZBA Notice of Decision – 23 Portsmouth Ave. 
 F.  Letter from Richard Goulet re: resignation from Zoning Board of Adjustment 
 
VII. Public Comment 
 

https://www.strathamnh.gov/select-board


TOWN OF STRATHAM 
INCORPORATED 1716 

 
10 BUNKER HILL AVENUE • STRATHAM NH 03885 

 
VOICE (603) 772-7391 • FAX (603) 775-0517 

 
 

VIII. Public Hearings, Ordinances and/or Resolutions 
 A.  Public Hearing on 2023 Town Budget Warrant 
 
IX. Discussion of Monthly Reports – (second meeting of the Month)  
 
X. New Business and Action Items 

A.  Expenditure of Funds from Accrued Benefits Liability Expendable Trust 
B.  Pump Track Renovation 
C.  Finalization of Town Warrant and Budget Recommendation 

 
XI. Town Administrator Report 

A. Update on elected position filings 
B. Proposed Joint Letter Regarding Route 33 Corridor Study 
C. Goals discussion 
D. HB 647 – “Immunity Bill” – NHMA input 

 
XII. Informational Items 

A. 2022 Final Ratio Study Report 
 
XIII. Reservations, Event Requests & Permits 

A.  Request from Port City Amateur Radio Club to use the top of the hill at SHP 6/23 – 
25/2023 

 B.  Raffle Permit request from CMS Music Boosters 
 C.  Great Bay 5K request to use the Front Pavilion 10/28/23 and waive the fee 

 
XIV. Review of Recent or Upcoming Board & Commissions Agendas 
 
XV.  Boards and Commissions Nominations & Appointments 
 

A.  Appointments for consideration:   
B.  Appointments to be voted on:      

  1.  Frank MacMillan for appointment to the Zoning Board of Adjustment 
  2.  Jameson Paine for appointment to the Zoning Board of Adjustment 
 
XVI. Miscellaneous & Old Business 
 
XVII. Adjournment 

https://www.nhmunicipal.org/legislative-bulletin/2023-nhma-legislative-bulletin-04#30714


MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 17, 2023 SELECT BOARD MEETING 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Board Members Chair Mike Houghton, Vice Chair Allison Knab, Joe 
Anderson  
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Town Administrator David Moore, Finance Administrator Christiane 
McAllister, Town Clerk/Tax Collector Deborah Bakie 
 
At 7:00 pm Mr. Houghton opened the meeting.  
 
Mr. Houghton called attention to the minutes of Dec 19 and January 3.  Ms. Knab wasn’t in 
attendance on Dec 19 and therefore abstained.  Mr. Anderson motioned to approve the minutes 
of Dec. 19 and Jan 3.  Mr. Houghton seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 
 
Mr. Houghton recognized resident Richard (Dick) Swett.  Mr. Swett spoke in favor of the New 
Business agenda item RSA 261:153 Transportation Local Fee Option.  As a member of the Age 
Friendly Committee, he reported that a major concern of seniors is the need for transportation 
services.  He referred to the success neighboring communities have had with projects funded by 
the fee.  Transportation Assistance for Seacoast Citizens (TASC) provides good service, but 
additional options are needed.  He recommends this being on the Warrant for consideration.  The 
Board thanked him for coming in.  Mr. Moore noted that town staff has reviewed the 
implications of this fee.  Mr. Houghton recognized Town Clerk/Tax Collector Deborah Bakie.  
Ms. Bakie determined that the estimated revenue would be close to $50,000, based on a $5 fee.  
She felt the residents have expressed support for pedestrian/bicycle improvements and would 
support this nominal fee.  Ms. Knab noted it could also support pedestrian improvements.  The 
group discussed the many projects that could be funded by the additional fee   
 
Mr. Moore gave next steps to move this to become a Warrant Article.  Mr. Houghton motioned 
to move this forward to a Warrant Article with a fee of $5.  Ms. Knab seconded the motion.  All 
voted in favor.  
 
Ms. Bakie gave a demonstration of a sample voting booth she is proposing to purchase.  She 
noted that the booths we have are in relative disrepair.  The proposed booths comply with NH 
RSAs and are being used by most communities throughout the state.  The new booths are 
sturdier and should serve the town for many years.  Mr. Moore noted that funds for replacement 
booth are included in the draft CIP.  A decision on what and when to purchase the replacements 
would be made separately after the Town Meeting. 
 
Mr. Houghton recognized Jim Marchese, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer to give 
his department report.  Mr. Marchese is updating the residential permit application as well as the 
third party review application.  Plans will go to third party review who will estimate their fee for 
their services for the project.  The funds from the application will be held in an escrow account 
which will be refunded upon completion of the project.  Mr. Moore called attention to the 
additional language included on the building permit and demolition permit application, which 
had been requested by the Board. 
 



Select Board Meeting January 3, 2023 Page 2 of 4 

Mr. Marchese reported that the department is working with Brightly to get the new permit 
software up and running by June.  They are ensuring compliance with RSAs.  The project is 
going smoothly.   
 
Mr. Marchese reported that department revenue from permitting is down 18% from last year.   
 
He identified several ongoing and upcoming projects including 23 Portsmouth Ave. (Optima); 
Planet Fitness, Outpatient Surgery Center and Lindt.   
 
Mr. Anderson inquired if the fees were current.  Mr. Moore noted the last update was in 2019.  
 
Mr. Moore recognized Mark Connors, Town Planner for his department report who began by 
reviewing some of the zoning amendments.  The Planning Board will hold the second Public 
Hearing on these zoning amendments tomorrow night.   
 

• Amendments 1 and 2 would increase the setback for developments in the corridor.  It 
would also clarify how we measure building height.   

• Amendment 3 allows for reduced setbacks in the Professional Residential district 
between Bunker Hill to the traffic circle.  This allows for less of a setback in the front. 

• Amendment 4 would establish standards for driveways, sidewalks, charging stations in 
the Gateway District.  This is in alignment with our goal of getting pedestrian 
improvements in the DOT 10 Year Plan.  

• Amendment 5 is a housekeeping amendment to correct inconsistencies in uses in the 
Gateway. 

• Amendment 6 addresses a new state law which limits ability of towns to regulate 
religious uses.  The Planning Board made an amendment to the site regulations so that if 
we get an application from a church, there is some review by the Planning Board.  The 
church would also have to be certified as a legitimate use.   

• Amendment 7 would establish some maximum residential densities in the commercial 
district.  

• Amendment 8 would replace our existing sign ordinance with a new sign ordinance.  
• Amendment 9 is a signage-related change.  If the Town supports this, it would eliminate 

illuminated commercial signage and would bring us in alignment with our surrounding 
communities. 

• Amendment 10 was requested by Stratham Green Condo Association.  Currently, the 
town requires we hold a performance guarantee in the amount of $4,000 for the life of 
their solar panel system which could be decades.  The Association would like flexibility 
to use that money.  The Planning Board is supportive of an agreement recorded at the 
Registry of Deeds that the Association is aware of this requirement to remove the panel if 
it is no longer being used.  

 
Ms. McAllister explained the accounting issues involved with holding this bond.  She is fully in 
support of this amendment.   
 
Next, Mr. Connors described the Private Well Water Testing Workshop being held at the 
Cooperative Middle School on February 22.  It is a big effort to ensure the samples are collected 



Select Board Meeting January 3, 2023 Page 3 of 4 

and taken to the lab within the proper timeframe.  The State will be sending mailings directly to 
eligible households.  PFAS is included as part of this test.   
 
There will be a ZBA meeting next Tuesday to consider the Select Board request for a re-hearing.  
A new bank is preparing to submit a site plan application.  He will have more information on that 
next week.  We are waiting on two grant applications – CMAC for electric charging stations at 
schools and public facilities as well as another CMAC grant to coordinate Portsmouth Ave. 
traffic signals and Age Friendly Community Grant to help with a communication plan for the 
Town.  The Aberdeen appeal goes before the Planning Board on Feb 15.  The State has asked us 
to participate in the State Planning and Zoning Conference in April to talk about the Rt 33 
Heritage District re-zoning. 
 
Mr. Connors explained that the RPC has funding to do a regional housing plan.  Part of that is to 
do an assessment of affordable housing in the region.  They have a formula to establish each 
town’s fair share.  This project is still in the early stages of development.   
 
Mr. Houghton welcomed the legislative delegation.  Sen. Debra Altschiller gave an update on the 
bills she filed that might affect Stratham.  They discussed NHMA’s involvement in legislative 
lobbying and municipalities’ contributions to the NH Retirement System.  Alexis Simpson talked 
about bills she is sponsoring including one on remote meetings.  Rep. Zoe Manos discussed a bill 
adding police officers as eligible to serve in civil processes.  Rep. Knab discussed a bill that 
would exempt agriculture operations from noise ordinances.  Mr. Moore explained the policy 
regarding the Town advocating positions on legislation.  He continued discussing, in general, 
DOT’s 10 year plan and the Corridor study and PFAS.  The responsibility for PFAS mitigation is 
costly and ongoing.  Fortunately, we have received State grant funds to assist with that.  He 
continued, discussing drinking water infrastructure and how it impacts housing.  Mr. Houghton 
agreed, noting that water quality standards are increasing but small towns can’t afford the 
infrastructure to address the issue.  The solution lies in creating regional water solutions.  Sen. 
Altschiller talked about coordinating future Board appearances with deadlines for legislative 
actions.  The Board thanked them for coming in.   
 
Mr. Houghton moved to Town Meeting details.  They discussed the location and the date.  It was 
agreed that Town Meeting will be held at Stratham Memorial School on Saturday, March 18th at 
9:00 am.   
 
Mr. Moore invited the Board to attend an Exeter Area Chamber of Commerce presentation on 
the 2023 Economic Forecast.    
 
He will have an updated set of goals at the next meeting.  We are working with the Historical 
Society on a grant to support improvements to that building.  He discussed the last upcoming 
Budget Advisory Committee meeting.  In response to Mr. Anderson’s question about updated 
budget numbers, Ms. McAllister explained we received unexpected expenses from DPW.  We 
have now expended 94.5% of the appropriated budget ($7,608,931).   
 
Mr. Moore continued, explained that he could decrease the solid waste line item, thereby getting 
to a 2% increase in the budget.  The group discussed the use of ARPA funds to reduce the CIP 



Select Board Meeting January 3, 2023 Page 4 of 4 

and the tax rate impact based on the operating budget.  The Public Hearing on the Warrant will 
be on Feb. 6th.  
 
RESERVATIONS 
Ms. Knab motioned approval to move forward with the 5K road race on Sunday, May 7th.  Mr. 
Anderson seconded the motion.  All voted in favor. 
 
Ms. Knab motioned to approve the requested road closure for the Stratham Memorial School 
Wellness Walk provided the Police Dept. is aware and approves.  Mr. Anderson seconded the 
motion.  All voted in favor. 
 
Ms. Knab motioned approval of the Greenland Vets use of the 4-H Pavilion, 9/10, and to waive 
the fee.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.  All voted in favor. 
 
Ms. Knab motioned approval of the Acorn School’s use of the Scamman Pavilion, 4/21, and to 
waive the fee.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.  All voted in favor. 
 
Ms. Knab motioned approval of the Collie Rescue League’s use of the Front Pavilion, 9/9, and to 
waive the fee.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.  All voted in favor. 
 
Mr. Houghton motioned to appoint John Kunowski, current alternate member, to fill the 
unexpired term of Pamela Hollasch to the Planning Board for a term to expire in 2025.  Mr. 
Anderson seconded the motion.  All voted in favor. 
 
Mr. Moore called attention to the open elected positions.   
 
Ms. Knab wanted it to be clear that the Select Board should be made aware if a group plans to 
advocate for a particular legislature, but they should not in any way hinder them. . 
 
At 9:22pm Mr. Houghton motioned to go into a non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-
A3, II(c ) to discuss items that may affect the reputation of another.  Roll Call:  Houghton-Yes; 
Knab-Yes; Anderson –yes.  
 
At 9:24pm Mr. Houghton motioned to seal the minutes noting that failure to do so may render a 
proposed action ineffective.  Roll Call:  Houghton-Yes; Knab-Yes; Anderson –yes.  
 
At 9:42pm Mr. Anderson motioned to adjourn.  Ms. Knab seconded the motion.  All voted in 
favor. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
Karen Richard, Recording Secretary 



 

MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 1, 2023 SELECT BOARD SPECIAL MEETING 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Board Members Chair Mike Houghton, Vice Chair Allison Knab, Joe 
Anderson 
 
At 1:30 pm Mr. Houghton opened the meeting then directed attention to the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment applications.  Ms. Knab motioned to accept the applications of Frank MacMillan and 
Jameson Paine for consideration to the Planning Board.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.  All 
voted in favor.   
 
At 1:35 pm Ms. Knab motioned to go into a non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3, 
II (a) the dismissal, promotion, or compensation of public employees.  Mr. Anderson seconded 
the motion.  Roll call:  Houghton – yes; Knab – yes; Anderson - yes 
 
At 5:10 pm Mr. Houghton moved to seal the minutes noting that divulgence of the information 
likely would render the proposed action ineffective.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.  All 
voted in favor. 
 
At 5:10 p.m. pm Ms. Knab motioned to adjourn.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.  All voted 
in favor. 
 
 

















From: David Moore
To: Karen Richard
Cc: Mark Connors
Subject: FW: 2023 Strategic Planning Grants
Date: Friday, January 27, 2023 1:25:42 PM

Karen,
 

Let’s put this on as a Feb 6th correspondence item.
 
DM
 

From: Adorno, Luis <Luis.S.Adorno@des.nh.gov> 
Sent: Friday, January 27, 2023 9:12 AM
Subject: 2023 Strategic Planning Grants
 
Good morning,
 
This email is to notify you that your organization was successful with the grant application submitted
for the Drinking Water and Groundwater 2023 Strategic Planning Grant. I will be following up this
email with a more formal award letter along with the documentation that will be required for the
final approval of the grant.
 
Once again, congratulations and I will be in touch shortly.
 
Have a great weekend!
 
Thank you,
 

Luis Adorno
Luis Adorno | Administrator II |   Sustainability Section |  NHDES   |   Drinking Water & Groundwater
Bureau
29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95   |   Concord, NH 03302
Tel: (603) 271-2472  |  Fax: (603) 271-5171
Email: Luis.adorno@des.nh.gov   
 
Asset Management | NH Department of Environmental Services
 

mailto:dmoore@StrathamNH.gov
mailto:KRichard@StrathamNH.gov
mailto:mconnors@StrathamNH.gov
mailto:Luis.adorno@des.nh.gov
https://www.des.nh.gov/business-and-community/asset-management


From: Deterling, Mathew
To: David Moore
Subject: Town of Stratham - DWGB Strategic Planning Grant
Date: Friday, February 03, 2023 10:42:47 AM

Hello David Moore
 
We are pleased to inform you that your project for addressing PFAS contamination has been
selected for a grant award up to $50,000 under the 2023 Drinking Water & Groundwater Bureau’s
Strategic Planning Grant Program.
 
Please provide a detailed scope of work to complete your project no later than 2:00pm on April 12,
2023.  The scope of work must include the following elements:

Vision statement or summary of the project goals
A minimum of three meetings with NHDES attendance: kick-off, mid-level and wrap up
A tentative schedule
Cost estimate
List of deliverables
Draft reports and documents shall be provided to NHDES in electronic format for review and
comment
Final documents shall be provided for NHDES in electronic format

The submitted scope of work must be approved by NHDES prior to entering into a grant agreement.
 
Once the scope of work is approved, paperwork to enter into a grant agreement will be created and
the process will begin for Governor and Council’s approval. Any work funded by the grant cannot be
completed until after Governor and Council approval. It is encouraged that the scope of work be
submitted as early as possible to start the process for approval and begin this important work.
 
Thank you,
 
Mat Deterling
NHDES
Drinking Water & Groundwater Bureau
(603)271-1994
 

mailto:Mathew.G.Deterling@des.nh.gov
mailto:dmoore@StrathamNH.gov






  

TOWN OF STRATHAM 
INCORPORATED 1716 

 
10 BUNKER HILL AVENUE • STRATHAM NH 03885 

 
VOICE (603) 772-7391 • FAX (603) 775-0517 

 
Notice of Public Hearing 

Town Budget and 2023 Town Meeting Warrant 
Town of Stratham Select Board 

 
There will be a public hearing held on Monday, February 6, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., in the Stratham 
Municipal Center, 10 Bunker Hill Avenue, concerning the Town of Stratham's 2023 town budget 
and 2023 Town Warrant. 
 
This meeting of the Select Board will be held in the Hutton Room of the Stratham Municipal 
Center. 
 
The public may access this meeting at the date and time above using this conference call 
information.  Please dial the conference number (877) 205 7349 and input 2254 when 
prompted for a user pin/code. 
 
If at any time during the meeting you have difficulty hearing the proceedings, please e-mail 
dmoore@strathamnh.gov. 
 
Specific items to be discussed include but are not necessarily limited to the following: 

 
1. Proposed 2023 Town operating budget. 

 
2. Proposed 2023 Appropriation for Capital Improvements. 

 
3. Proposed funding of certain Capital Reserve Funds for 2023. 

 
4. The funding of fire department training, vehicles, equipment purchases, and 

advance life support services by authorizing the use of funds from the “Stratham 
Fire Department EMS Fund.” 
 

5. Re-adopt the All Veterans' Tax Credit under RSA 72:28-b at current levels. 
 

6. Re-adopt the Optional Veterans' Tax Credit under RSA 72:28, II at current levels. 
 

7. Adoption of Fees RSA 41:9 a – to allow the Select Board to set fees following a 
public hearing 
 



8. Adoption of NH RSA 261:153 to see if the Town will vote to collect an additional 
motor vehicle registration fee of $5.00 per vehicle for the purpose of supporting 
a Municipal Transportation Improvement Fund as set forth in RSA 261:153 VI. 
 

9. Any other special warrant articles to appear on the 2023 warrant. 
 

10. Any other petition warrant articles to appear on the 2023 warrant. 
 

11. Any other items to appear on the 2023 town warrant. 
 
If necessary due to weather or other unforeseen event, the public hearing will be rescheduled to 
Wednesday February 8, 2023 at 5:30 pm at the same location.  If the rescheduled date is 
necessary, the rescheduling will be made at the call of the Select Board Chair and posted 
accordingly in advance of the scheduled start of the February 6th meeting. 

 























2023 Town Meeting Warrant 

 

****************************************************************************** 
THE FOLLOWING ARTICLES WILL BE VOTED ON SATURDAY MARCH 18, 2023 AT 9:00 A.M. AT 
THE STRATHAM MEMORIAL SCHOOL 39 GIFFORD FARM ROAD STRATHAM, NH 03885******** 
 
ARTICLE 11:  2023 Operating Budget 
 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Eight million two hundred and 
twenty-nine thousand six hundred and thirty-four dollars ($8,229,634) for general municipal 
operations.  This article does not include appropriations contained in special or individual articles 
addressed separately. 
 
The Select Board recommends this Article by unanimous vote. 
 
ARTICLE 12:  Capital Improvements Program 
 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Seven hundred and fifty-three 
thousand dollars ($753,000) to implement the Capital Improvements Program for 2023 as 
presented in the Town Report and recommended by the Planning Board.  This is a special warrant 
article which will be non-lapsing until the specific items are completed or obtained but shall in 
no case be later than December 31, 2028 per NH RSA 32:7 (VI). 
 
The Select Board recommends this Article by unanimous vote. 
 
ARTICLE 13:  Appropriate Funds to Several Capital Reserve Funds 
 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Two hundred and eighty-five 
thousand dollars ($285,000) to be added to the following capital reserve funds previously 
established with One hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) to come from the unassigned 
fund balance and One hundred and thirty-five thousand dollars ($135,000) to be raised through 
general taxation.  

Fire Department Capital Reserve Fund $110,000 
Historic Preservation Capital Reserve Fund   $50,000 
Highway Vehicle/Equipment Capital Reserve Fund  $125,000 

 Total $285,000 
 
The Select Board recommends this Article by unanimous vote. 
 
 
  



2023 Town Meeting Warrant 

 

ARTICLE 14:  First Responder Training and ALS Service Contract (EMS Special Revenue Fund) 
 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Twenty thousand dollars 
($20,000) for the following purposes:  
 
2023 EMS/EMT/First Responder Training                  $10,000  
2023 ALS Services Contract                                           $10,000  
 
and to further authorize the withdrawal of Twenty thousand dollars ($20,000) from the 
Stratham Fire Department EMS Special Revenue Fund created for these purposes during the 
March 17, 2000 Annual Town Meeting and as amended during the March 11, 2005 Town 
Meeting.  No additional funds from general taxation are to be used. 
 
The Select Board recommends this Article by unanimous vote. 
 
ARTICLE 15:  Fire Engine #1 Replacement  
 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum not to exceed Nine hundred and 
fifty thousand dollars ($950,000) for the replacement of Fire Engine #1 and to further authorize 
the withdrawal of Two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) from the Stratham Fire 
Department EMS Special Revenue Fund, created March 17, 2000 and amended March 11, 2005 
to include the purpose of purchasing Fire Department vehicles and equipment. The balance will 
be raised from the Stratham Fair Trust Fund ($80,000) and the remaining balance not to exceed 
$620,000 from the Fire Department Capital Reserve Fund. This special warrant article will be 
non-lapsing per RSA 32:7, VI and will not lapse until the purchase has been completed, or 
December 31, 2028, whichever is sooner.  No additional funds from general taxation are to be 
used. 
 
The Select Board recommends this Article by unanimous vote. 
 
ARTICLE 16:  Optional Veterans’ Tax Credit (72:28, II) 
  
To see if the Town will readopt the optional Veterans’ Tax Credit in accordance with RSA 72:28, 
II, for an annual tax credit on residential property of $600.   
 
The Select Board recommends this Article by unanimous vote. 
  
ARTICLE 17:  All Veterans’ Tax Credit (72:28-b) 
  



2023 Town Meeting Warrant 

 

To see if the Town will readopt the All Veterans’ Tax Credit in accordance with RSA 72:28-b, for 
an annual tax credit on residential property which shall be equal to the same amount as the 
standard or optional veterans’ tax credit voted by the Town under RSA 72:28. 
 
The Select Board recommends this Article by unanimous vote. 
 
ARTICLE 18: Motor Vehicle Registration Fee and Capital Reserve Fund 
 
To see if the Town will vote to collect an additional motor vehicle registration fee of $5.00 per vehicle 
for the purpose of supporting a Municipal Transportation Improvement Fund as set forth in RSA 261:153 
VI, and further, to vote to establish said fund as a capital reserve fund governed by RSA 35 and to 
appoint the Select Board as agents to expend from this capital reserve fund for the purposes for which it 
was established.  Proceeds from the Municipal Transportation Improvement Fund are to be used to 
support eligible local transportation improvement projects as permitted under RSA 261:153 such as 
public transportation, roadway improvements, signal upgrades, and development of new bicycle and 
pedestrian paths. The additional fee shall be collected from all vehicles, both passenger and commercial, 
with the exception of all-terrain vehicles as defined in RSA 215-A:1, I-b and antique motor vehicles or 
motorcycles as defined in RSA 259:4. (Ballot Vote Required) 

The Select Board recommends this Article by unanimous vote. 
 
ARTICLE 19: Establishment of Fees 
 
To see if the Town will vote to adopt RSA 41:9-a, to allow the Select Board to establish or amend fees 
following a public hearing process.  Fees authorized under the section include fees related to regulatory 
programs adopted by the Town and feeds for the use of revenue-producing facilities. 
 
The Select Board recommends this Article by unanimous vote. 
 
ARTICLE 20:  To transact any other business that may legally come before this meeting. 
 
Given under our hands and seal, this _______________ day of February in the year of our Lord 
two thousand twenty three. 
 
 
 
       Select Board of Stratham, NH 
 
       _______________________________ 

Michael Houghton 
 

       _______________________________ 



2023 Town Meeting Warrant 

 

Allison Knab 
 
_______________________________ 

       Joseph Anderson 
 

We certify and attest that on or before the ___ of February, 2023, we posted a true and attested 
copy of the within Warrant at the place of meeting, and like copies at the Town Offices and the 
Wiggin Memorial Library, and delivered the original to the Town Clerk. 
 
       _______________________________ 

Michael Houghton 
 

       _______________________________ 
Allison Knab 
 
_______________________________ 

       Joseph Anderson 
 
 

 



Summary of Codes Used

Group Class: AA - Any & All Property Codes: 11 = Single Family Home
12 = Multi Family 2-4 Units
14 = Single Res Condo Unit
17 = Mfg Housing With Land
22 = Residential Land
26 = Mixed Use Cmcl/Ind Land
33 = Commercial L&B
38 = Non Res Bldg Only
44 = Commercial Condo

Modifier Codes: 00 = No Modifier Code Special Codes: 00 = No Special Code

Sales In Date Range Sales Used Results

Total: 174
XX Moved: 0

Sales w/PA34: 151
%Sales w/PA34: 86.8%

Total Strata: 174
Sales Used: 155

%Sales Used: 89.1%
Sales Used w/PA34: 139

%Sales Used w/PA34: 89.7%

%Mean: 72.4%
%Median: 71.9%
%WtMean: 68.0%

COD (Median): 10.3
PRD: 1.06

Median Selling Price: $599,933
Median Assessed Value: $422,900

Town Code: 204 Weighted Mean: 70.3 COD: 9.2 PRD: 1.02

Valid Sales: 155 Wt.Mean Lo 90%CI: 68.6 COD Lo 90%CI: 8.1 PRD Lo 90%CI: 1.01

Trimmed: 3 Wt.Mean Up 90%CI: 71.7 COD Up 90%CI: 10.3 PRD Up 90%CI: 1.04

Untrimmed: 152 Median Ratio: 71.9 Weighted COD: 9.5 COV: 12.2

Trim Factor: 3 Median Lo 90%CI: 70.3 Med. Abs. Dev.: 7.6 25th Percentile: 66.9

Lo Trim Point: 45.2 Median Up 90%CI: 72.7 Med % Dev.: 10.5 75th Percentile: 76.7

Up Trim Point: 97.1 Mean Ratio: 71.9 Coef. Conc. 10%: 72.3 Broaden Median: 71.9

Basic Statistics Section (Not Trimmed)

Extended Statistics Section (Trimmed)

Indicated Ratio / Weighted Mean

Year 2022 2021 2020

Indicated Ratio 70.3 81.8 95.4

Weighted Mean 70.3 81.8 95.4

2022 Final Ratio Study Report 1 of 9

1/31/2023 3:10:28 PM

Town Name:

Use Code:

Date Range:

Ratios were created using stipulated year assessments.

Stratham, Rockingham County

AA - Any & All

10-01-2021 through 09-30-2022



Min Ratio: 35.8 Mean Lo 90%CI: 70.8 Coef. Conc. 15%: 90.3 Geometric Mean: 71.4

Max Ratio: 130.6 Mean Up 90%CI: 73.1 Coef. Conc. 20%: 94.2 Harmonic Mean: 70.9

Min Sale $: $15,000 Avg. Sale Price: $655,046 Coef. Conc. 50%: 98.7 Std. Deviation: 8.8

Max Sale $: $9,000,000 Avg. Appraised Val: $460,730 Coef. Conc. 100%: 100 Normality Test: Accept

The general descriptive and median ratio statistics are not trimmed of outliers and are based on all valid sales in the sample.

Included Sales

Verno Book
Page

Sale 
Price

Assessed
Value

Ratio PC MC SC Trim Notes

1 6336-0072 $490,000 $392,900 80.2 14

2 6336-0984 $700,000 $449,200 64.2 14 CHANGE IN ASSESSMENT=ADDED 
GENERATOR IN 2022

3 6336-1027 $525,000 $378,400 72.1 11

4 6339-1265 $675,000 $497,500 73.7 14

5 6339-1317 $1,375,000 $839,800 61.1 11

6 6340-0484 $610,000 $434,400 71.2 11

13 6341-2848 $460,000 $377,900 82.2 11

16 6342-0885 $742,533 $483,700 65.1 11 CHANGE IN ASSESSMENT=ADDED 
CENTRAL AIR IN 2022

17 6343-0593 $355,000 $307,400 86.6 11

24 6346-1176 $592,000 $415,600 70.2 11

Summary of Exclusion Codes Used

Codes Description Count %Excluded %Strata

15 Improvements +/- Incomplete at Assmt date 8 42.1 5.2

17 L/B Assessment - L/O Sale 1 5.3 0.6

19 Multi-Town Property 1 5.3 0.6

38 Family/Relatives/Affil as Grantor/Grantee 2 10.5 1.3

81 Estate Sale With Fiduciary Covenants 5 26.3 3.2

89 Resale in EQ Period 2 10.5 1.3

19 100.0 12.2

2022 Final Ratio Study Report 2 of 9

1/31/2023 3:10:28 PM

Town Name:

Use Code:

Date Range:

Ratios were created using stipulated year assessments.

Stratham, Rockingham County

AA - Any & All

10-01-2021 through 09-30-2022



Included Sales

Verno Book
Page

Sale 
Price

Assessed
Value

Ratio PC MC SC Trim Notes

25 6346-2790 $321,000 $232,000 72.3 14

26 6346-2911 $735,000 $525,000 71.4 11

27 6347-0141 $599,933 $400,800 66.8 14

28 6347-0467 $460,000 $334,400 72.7 11

29 6347-1051 $649,933 $502,000 77.2 11

30 6347-1187 $547,333 $394,300 72 12 NEW LOT IN 2022

32 6348-1508 $1,050,000 $694,400 66.1 11 DIFFERENT ASSESSMENT=CHANGED 
COND FROM GOOD TO VERY GOOD FOR 
UPGRADED KIT COUNTERS

35 6349-2682 $447,000 $345,100 77.2 11

37 6350-0235 $815,933 $677,900 83.1 11 HOUSE UNDER CONSTRUCTION IN 2021. 
HOUSE COMPLETE IN 2022

43 6353-0690 $625,000 $515,800 82.5 14

45 6353-2190 $215,000 $170,500 79.3 14

46 6353-2717 $800,000 $641,100 80.1 11

47 6354-0052 $473,533 $357,500 75.5 11

48 6354-0218 $580,000 $458,500 79 14

49 6354-0630 $619,000 $456,000 73.7 11 NEW CONDEX IN 2022

54 6355-2369 $240,000 $187,700 78.2 14

55 6355-2835 $500,000 $365,200 73 11

56 6356-0242 $710,000 $399,700 56.3 14 assessment change=kit/bth reno & added 
gas fireplace

58 6356-2604 $275,000 $241,000 87.6 17 assessment change=removal of shed

59 6356-2663 $800,000 $575,300 71.9 11

62 6357-1577 $322,533 $232,800 72.2 14

64 6358-0021 $299,933 $224,500 74.8 14

66 6358-2875 $665,000 $513,900 77.3 11 assessment change=kitchen reno & added 
gas fireplace

68 6359-1430 $599,933 $418,400 69.7 14

69 6359-1719 $850,000 $664,200 78.1 11

70 6359-2849 $899,000 $855,900 95.2 11

2022 Final Ratio Study Report 3 of 9

1/31/2023 3:10:28 PM

Town Name:

Use Code:

Date Range:

Ratios were created using stipulated year assessments.

Stratham, Rockingham County

AA - Any & All

10-01-2021 through 09-30-2022



Included Sales

Verno Book
Page

Sale 
Price

Assessed
Value

Ratio PC MC SC Trim Notes

73 6360-1408 $995,000 $740,500 74.4 11 assessment change=added finished 
basement and full bathroom and shed

75 6361-0346 $350,000 $234,900 67.1 14 assessment change=added a/c

76 6361-2357 $635,000 $432,100 68 11 assessment change=added finish basement, 
added 1/2 bath, updated kitchen, added a/c

83 6362-1623 $235,000 $177,600 75.6 14

84 6362-2778 $275,000 $204,200 74.2 14 assessment change=updated kitchen, added 
1/2 bath

87 6363-2095 $7,600,000 $4,740,000 62.4 33

90 6364-2591 $9,000,000 $3,224,800 35.8 33 Yes

92 6365-0999 $349,000 $272,800 78.2 11

95 6366-0819 $1,650,000 $1,114,800 67.6 26

96 6366-1555 $480,000 $359,900 75 11 assessment change=corrected basement 
garage to unfin basement

97 6366-1611 $700,000 $505,900 72.3 11

100 6367-0156 $962,533 $678,400 70.5 11

101 6367-0846 $525,000 $447,900 85.3 14 assessment change=added finished 
basement and 1/2 bath

102 6367-1899 $471,000 $368,600 78.3 11 Resale V42(EC89

103 6367-2306 $900,000 $647,500 71.9 11 assessment change=added finished 
basement, pool and patio

104 6368-0623 $865,000 $776,900 89.8 11 assessment change=added pool and garage

107 6369-0461 $360,000 $259,600 72.1 22

108 6369-1173 $650,000 $564,500 86.8 11 assessment change=full interior renovation, 
updated condition

109 6370-1377 $585,000 $426,000 72.8 14

110 6370-1622 $315,000 $245,800 78 14 assessment change=increased deck size

112 6371-1470 $289,000 $227,200 78.6 14

114 6372-1709 $555,000 $394,300 71 12 new house in 2022

117 6373-1638 $795,000 $587,800 73.9 11 assessment change=corrected heat from 
gas/none to oil/forced hot water

120 6374-0177 $102,733 $97,000 94.4 44

122 6374-1620 $415,000 $350,700 84.5 11 added generator

131 6378-0210 $335,000 $243,500 72.7 14

2022 Final Ratio Study Report 4 of 9

1/31/2023 3:10:28 PM

Town Name:

Use Code:

Date Range:

Ratios were created using stipulated year assessments.

Stratham, Rockingham County

AA - Any & All

10-01-2021 through 09-30-2022



Included Sales

Verno Book
Page

Sale 
Price

Assessed
Value

Ratio PC MC SC Trim Notes

132 6378-0744 $234,000 $105,800 45.2 44

141 6381-2950 $428,000 $341,100 79.7 11

145 6382-2534 $1,154,933 $807,600 69.9 11 house under construction in 2021, house 
finished in 2022

149 6383-0365 $300,000 $255,400 85.1 17 assessment change=removed pool

152 6384-0255 $600,000 $385,800 64.3 14

153 6384-1307 $700,000 $479,700 68.5 11 added entrance to sketch

156 6387-1736 $355,000 $295,300 83.2 14

158 6388-2231 $600,000 $783,500 130.6 33 Yes

162 6390-2507 $825,000 $525,700 63.7 11

166 6393-2042 $495,000 $306,100 61.8 14

168 6395-0260 $1,230,000 $709,300 57.7 11

169 6395-1988 $620,000 $428,100 69 11

170 6395-2483 $1,105,400 $717,700 64.9 11 new house in 2022

171 6395-2803 $894,000 $711,300 79.6 11 2021 house under construction. 2022 house 
complete

176 6398-0230 $572,000 $370,400 64.8 11 2022 updated interior, condition from average 
to very good

177 6399-0041 $445,000 $329,900 74.1 11

178 6399-1931 $670,000 $497,500 74.2 12

186 6401-1161 $586,000 $397,000 67.8 11

189 6403-1116 $260,000 $174,300 67 14 Resale V242(EC89)

197 6338-0263 $240,000 $179,800 74.9 14

198 6339-0234 $857,800 $704,400 82.1 11 house under construction in 2021, house 
finished 2022

201 6404-2644 $600,000 $573,400 95.6 33

203 6405-1753 $210,000 $156,400 74.5 14

204 6405-2588 $810,000 $544,900 67.3 11

207 6406-0585 $250,000 $176,500 70.6 22 resale V350(EC15)/new lot in 2022

212 6407-1236 $670,000 $442,100 66 14

2022 Final Ratio Study Report 5 of 9

1/31/2023 3:10:28 PM

Town Name:

Use Code:

Date Range:

Ratios were created using stipulated year assessments.

Stratham, Rockingham County

AA - Any & All

10-01-2021 through 09-30-2022



Included Sales

Verno Book
Page

Sale 
Price

Assessed
Value

Ratio PC MC SC Trim Notes

214 6408-1223 $830,000 $527,100 63.5 11

215 6408-1949 $951,000 $716,100 75.3 11

216 6408-2034 $314,933 $226,500 71.9 14

220 6409-1295 $500,000 $350,000 70 11

222 6410-1701 $585,000 $390,400 66.7 11 assessment change=unfinished basement to 
unfinished raised basement

225 6412-0355 $1,040,000 $634,200 61 11 assessment change=entrance to open porch, 
hsf/gar to tqf/gar

226 6412-1163 $565,000 $344,700 61 11

229 6413-1885 $1,175,000 $707,200 60.2 11

235 6414-2843 $320,000 $195,800 61.2 14

236 6415-1024 $480,000 $374,500 78 11

239 6415-1948 $1,350,000 $999,600 74 11 2022 added gazebo

240 6415-2189 $1,000,000 $605,000 60.5 11

243 6416-2000 $850,000 $573,300 67.4 11

244 6416-2161 $817,000 $481,800 59 11

246 6416-2887 $625,000 $422,900 67.7 14

248 6417-0633 $590,000 $414,800 70.3 11

250 6417-1415 $650,000 $455,400 70.1 11

251 6418-2154 $243,000 $185,000 76.1 14

253 6418-2636 $270,000 $228,900 84.8 14

259 6418-2876 $855,000 $569,600 66.6 11

260 6418-2892 $370,533 $481,400 129.9 11 Yes Warranty Deed

261 6419-1274 $615,533 $434,900 70.6 14

262 6419-1424 $510,000 $355,900 69.8 11

263 6419-1491 $1,000,000 $589,400 58.9 11 assessment change=changed a portion of 
the basement to raised basement

264 6419-2283 $15,000 $8,000 53.3 22

265 6419-2290 $425,000 $323,600 76.1 14

2022 Final Ratio Study Report 6 of 9

1/31/2023 3:10:28 PM

Town Name:

Use Code:

Date Range:

Ratios were created using stipulated year assessments.

Stratham, Rockingham County

AA - Any & All

10-01-2021 through 09-30-2022



Included Sales

Verno Book
Page

Sale 
Price

Assessed
Value

Ratio PC MC SC Trim Notes

267 6420-1734 $922,000 $678,800 73.6 11

268 6420-1935 $1,205,000 $716,900 59.5 11 assessment change=added finished 
basement

282 6421-1869 $500,000 $342,200 68.4 11

284 6422-0379 $534,000 $351,700 65.9 11

288 6424-1609 $825,000 $654,200 79.3 11

289 6424-2437 $482,533 $389,000 80.6 11

290 6425-1374 $246,000 $154,000 62.6 14

291 6425-2612 $634,533 $475,900 75 11

296 6426-2145 $415,000 $301,800 72.7 14

297 6426-2291 $229,000 $158,400 69.2 14

298 6427-1179 $652,533 $459,000 70.3 11

299 6428-0174 $401,000 $240,000 59.8 14

300 6428-0177 $250,000 $184,600 73.8 14

301 6428-0410 $640,000 $619,200 96.8 33

304 6429-0237 $267,000 $181,200 67.9 14

305 6429-0744 $730,000 $454,600 62.3 14

308 6429-0986 $594,000 $362,900 61.1 14

310 6429-1046 $650,000 $489,900 75.4 11

312 6429-2491 $363,000 $220,200 60.7 14

318 6431-1507 $629,000 $456,700 72.6 11

322 6431-2898 $190,000 $144,400 76 38

323 6432-0952 $700,000 $436,700 62.4 11

327 6433-0742 $816,000 $572,100 70.1 11 assessment change=added a/c, updated 
kitchen

328 6433-1184 $730,000 $545,500 74.7 11

329 6433-1327 $450,000 $393,800 87.5 11

330 6435-0063 $805,000 $487,700 60.6 11

2022 Final Ratio Study Report 7 of 9

1/31/2023 3:10:28 PM

Town Name:

Use Code:

Date Range:

Ratios were created using stipulated year assessments.

Stratham, Rockingham County

AA - Any & All

10-01-2021 through 09-30-2022



Excluded Sales

Verno Book
Page

Sale
Price

Assessed
Vaue

Ratio PC MC SC EX Notes

9 6341-0354 $90,000 $327,500 363.9 11 81 Estate Sale With Fiduciary Covenants
See Fiduciary Deed

12 6341-2070 $250,000 $370,800 148.3 22 15 Improvements +/- Incomplete at Assmt date
Resale V338(EC15)

42 6352-2416 $471,000 $368,600 78.3 11 89 Resale in EQ Period
Resale V102

57 6356-2031 $869,933 $614,000 70.6 11 15 Improvements +/- Incomplete at Assmt date

67 6359-0414 $450,000 $356,300 79.2 11 38 Family/Relatives/Affil as Grantor/Grantee

113 6371-1534 $622,533 $414,800 66.6 11 81 Estate Sale With Fiduciary Covenants
See Fiduciary Deed

121 6374-1158 $203,600 $437,900 215.1 22 17 L/B Assessment - L/O Sale

Included Sales

Verno Book
Page

Sale 
Price

Assessed
Value

Ratio PC MC SC Trim Notes

331 6435-2649 $304,933 $223,200 73.2 14

332 6436-0463 $350,000 $340,000 97.1 11

335 6436-1670 $570,000 $401,600 70.5 14

339 6437-2662 $612,000 $425,800 69.6 14

340 6437-2773 $775,000 $545,900 70.4 11

341 6438-0393 $549,000 $382,400 69.6 14

343 6438-1739 $925,000 $645,600 69.8 11

345 6438-2840 $461,000 $320,900 69.6 11

348 6439-1157 $805,000 $545,800 67.8 14

349 6439-1302 $707,000 $428,400 60.6 14

355 6441-0710 $355,000 $247,300 69.7 11

356 6441-1374 $1,225,000 $692,500 56.5 11

357 6441-2292 $850,000 $570,200 67.1 11

361 6442-1421 $709,933 $409,900 57.7 14

363 6443-0334 $800,000 $590,900 73.9 11

2022 Final Ratio Study Report 8 of 9

1/31/2023 3:10:28 PM

Town Name:

Use Code:

Date Range:

Ratios were created using stipulated year assessments.

Stratham, Rockingham County

AA - Any & All

10-01-2021 through 09-30-2022



Excluded Sales

Verno Book
Page

Sale
Price

Assessed
Vaue

Ratio PC MC SC EX Notes

123 6374-2943 $238,000 $188,400 79.2 14 38 Family/Relatives/Affil as Grantor/Grantee

209 6406-1530 $923,600 $410,400 44.4 11 15 Improvements +/- Incomplete at Assmt date

238 6415-1478 $261,000 $197,600 75.7 14 81 Estate Sale With Fiduciary Covenants
See Fiduciary Deed

242 6416-1100 $265,000 $174,300 65.8 14 89 Resale in EQ Period
Resale V189

245 6416-2282 $792,533 $343,200 43.3 11 15 Improvements +/- Incomplete at Assmt date

269 6420-2075 $46,930,000 $4,025,900 8.6 33 19 Multi-Town Property
building 85% in exeter, 15% in stratham

286 6422-1508 $1,120,200 $433,100 38.7 11 15 Improvements +/- Incomplete at Assmt date

311 6429-1473 $293,200 $310,100 105.8 11 81 Estate Sale With Fiduciary Covenants
See Fiduciary Deed

326 6433-0161 $1,845,000 $699,800 37.9 11 15 Improvements +/- Incomplete at Assmt date

334 6436-1354 $400,000 $352,600 88.2 12 81 Estate Sale With Fiduciary Covenants
See Fiduciary Deed

338 6437-2004 $1,134,333 $370,800 32.7 11 15 Improvements +/- Incomplete at Assmt date
Resale V12(EC89)

350 6439-2060 $950,000 $176,500 18.6 22 15 Improvements +/- Incomplete at Assmt date
Resale V207

2022 Final Ratio Study Report 9 of 9

1/31/2023 3:10:28 PM

Town Name:

Use Code:

Date Range:

Ratios were created using stipulated year assessments.

Stratham, Rockingham County

AA - Any & All

10-01-2021 through 09-30-2022



From: Karen Richard
To: David Moore
Subject: Burial Payment Request
Date: Friday, February 3, 2023 11:47:00 AM

Select Board,
As a town we are responsible for paying for the cremation of residents who do not
have relatives and are indigent.  In 2021 you adopted a policy to pay $1,000 for this
service.  I have received a call from Jeff Remick of Remick & Gendron Funeral Home
notifying us that he is in the care of a deceased Stratham resident in the situation
described above.  Mr. Remick explained that cremation costs have increased
dramatically over the past couple of years and he is hoping that you will consider
paying an additional $400 (total $1,400) to help cover his costs.    
Thank you.
 
 
Karen Richard
Town of Stratham
10 Bunker Hill Ave.
Stratham, NH 03885
603-772-7391 x187
 

mailto:KRichard@StrathamNH.gov
mailto:dmoore@StrathamNH.gov







	sb AGENDA 2 6 2023
	Correspondence-Eversource ltr transmission structure replacements 1-5-23
	Correspondence-Unitil - Trees
	Correspondence-NHDOT Squamscott Culverts 1-10-23
	Correspondence-2023 Strategic Planning Grants
	Correspondence-23 Portsmouth ZBA NOD
	Goulet resignation
	Public Hearing Notice 2023 Warrant - 2-06-2023
	Pump Track SB Packet
	Informational-2022 RatioStudy
	CMS boosters application
	macmillan application
	Paine J application



